



**THE CONSTITUTION  
OF  
NATIONAL FELLOWSHIP OF  
CHRISTIAN PHARMACY  
STUDENTS  
(N.F.C.P.S)**

**THE CONSTITUTION OF THE NATIONAL FELLOWSHIP OF CHRISTIAN**

## PHARMACY STUDENTS (NFCPS)

### PREAMBLE

The National fellowship of Christian Pharmacy Students (NFCPS) a.k.a “*pharmacy fellowship*” was set up on 29<sup>th</sup> march 1991 at O.A.U. Ile Ife with representatives from all pharmacy schools in Nigeria to bring Christian pharmacy Students together for the purpose of creating awareness of serving the lord better in training and equipping the brethren spiritually to overcome challenges posed by the profession.

For the more certain preservation, security of the principle of our faith, the aforementioned to the end that this body may be governed in an orderly manner and for the purpose of the freedom of action of this body with respect to relation with other fellowships, we do declare and establish this constitution.

### I. CITATION

This document shall be called ‘*the constitution of the National fellowship of Christian Pharmacy Students*’ herein referred to as the constitution. The constitution shall be reviewed in 10 years interval, unless review is deemed necessary at an earlier time by the NEC. The constitution will be reviewed by the hosting chapter the year of review.

### II. NAME

The fellowship shall be known and addressed as the National Fellowship of Christian Pharmacy Students, herein after referred to as “NFCPS”. The various school fellowships making up the NFCPS shall be addressed as “*chapters*”

### III. MOTTO

The motto of NFCPS shall be “*CHRIST THE THERAPY FOR ALL*”

### IV. LOGO

The logo of NFCPS shall be a map of Nigeria wherein is a cross with the letter NFCPS. Also enclosed by the map is the Bible on which is the recipe sign (Px). These denote our faith in the infallible word of God and our professional disposition as pharmacist in training. There should be uniformity of logo across the different chapters.



## V. ANTHEM

NFCPS shall have an anthem binding on all chapters of the household. The anthem shall be known by all the members and shall be sung at every meeting including the National Convention.

### *NFCPS ANTHEM*

*As we stand here, gathered today*

*There is something, holding us together*

*Far beyond Pharmacy, this is God's true love*

*In Jesus Christ, so we can confidently say*

*That we are, one family*

*Solo: National...*

*National Fellowship of Christian Pharmacy Students*

*Our aim is to speak Christ the Therapy for all*

*So Lord help us fulfill*

*Solo: So Lord...*

*So Lord help us fulfill*

## **ARTICLE OF FAITH**

### **1. THE SCRIPTURE- 2 Timothy 3:16-17**

The scripture of the old and new testament were given by the inspiration of God and are the only sufficient, certain and authoritative rule of all saving knowledge, faith and obedience.

### **2. GOD- 1 Corinthians 8:6, Ephesians 4:6**

There is but one God, themaker, preserver and ruler of all things, having in and of himself all perfection and being infinite in them all, to Him all creatures owe the highest love, reverence and obedience.

### **3. TRINITY-1 Peter 1:2, 1 John 5:7**

God is revealed to us as father, Son and Holy Spirit, each with distinct personal attributes but without divisions of nature, essence or being.

### **4. ELECTION- Romans 4:6-8, Ephesians 2:8-9**

Election of God's eternal choice of persons unto everlasting life, not because of foreseen merit in them, but of his mercy in Christ, in consequence of which choice they're called justified and glorified.

### **5. THE FALL OF MAN- Genesis 3**

God originally created man in his own image and free from sin, but through the temptation of Satan, he transgressed the command of God, and fell from his original holiness and righteousness, whereby his posterity inherited a nature which is corrupt and wholly opposed to God, and His laws, and is under condemnation, and as soon as he is capable moral action, becomes actual transgressor.

### **6. MEDIATOR- 1 Timothy 2:5-7**

Jesus Christ the only begotten son of God is the divinely appointed mediator between god and man. Having taken upon Himself the Human nature, yet without sin, he perfectly fulfilled the law, suffered and died upon the cross for the salvation of sinners. He was buried, rose again on the third day and ascended to his father at whose right hand He ever lives to make intercession for his people. He is the only mediator.

### **7. REGENERATION- Romans 2:29, Romans 8:9**

Regeneration is a change of heart wrought by the Holy Spirit, who quickens the dead in trespass and sins, enlightening their minds spiritually and savingly to understand the word of God, and renewing their whole nature so that they love and practice holiness. It is a work of God's free and special grace alone.

#### **8. REPENTANCE- 2 Chronicles 7:14, 1 John 1:9**

Repentance is an evangelical grace, wherein a person being by the Holy Spirit, made sensible of the manifold evil of his sin, humbles for it, with godly sorrow, detestation of it, and abhorrence, with a purpose and endeavor to walk God so as to please Him in all things.

#### **9. FAITH- Romans 1:17**

Faith is the belief on God's authority of whatever is revealed in His word concerning Christ, accepting and resting upon Him alone for justification, sanctification and eternal life. It is wrought in the heart by the Holy Spirit and is accompanied by all other saving grace and leads to the life of holiness.

#### **10. JUSTIFICATION- 2 Corinthians 5:21, Romans 8:30**

Justification is God's gracious and full acquittal of sinners, who believe in Christ from all, through the sacrifice that Christ has made; not for anything wrought in them or done by them, but on account of the obedience and satisfaction of Christ, they receiving and resting on Him and his righteousness by faith.

#### **11. HOLINESS- Hebrews 12:14**

Holiness is the nature of God. Without holiness no man can see the Lord.

#### **12. THE CHURCH- Colossians 1:18-19**

The Lord Jesus Christ is the head of the church, which is composed of all His true disciples and in Him is invested supremely all power for its government.

#### **13. JUDGEMENT- Acts 17:31, Hebrews 9:27**

God has appointed a day wherein He will judge the world by Jesus Christ when everyone shall receive according to his deeds; the wicked shall go away into everlasting punishment; the righteous into everlasting life.

## **CHARACTER**

### **1. POLICY**

The National Fellowship of Christian Pharmacy Students (N.F.C.P.S) is non-denominational. The fellowship could invite or be invited to activities of other Christian groups/fellowships especially among the Health Care Team. The constitution is binding on all (N.F.C.P.S.) chapters.

### **2. DOCTRINE**

The fellowship receives the scripture as its authority in matters of faith and practice. In all the matters where the constitution is silent, the bible shall be the sole undisputed authority.

## **ARTICLE I**

### **MEMBERSHIP**

1. Memberships shall be open to all Christian pharmacy students who acknowledge Jesus Christ as their Lord and Savior.
2. Members shall include Christian pharmacy students from all schools of pharmacy in Nigeria.
3. **Membership shall be by filling first-timer form and thereafter followed up.**
4. **Content of the form: Name, level, contact address, and provision of membership.**

## **ARTICLE II**

### **AIM AND OBJECTIVES**

- (a.)To build members into spiritually matured, responsible Christian Pharmacist who will provide truly professional and selfless service to humanity.
- (b.)To promote friendship, cooperation, love, unity and serve as a forum for addressing a wide range of issues with Pharmaceutical and Spiritual implications.
- (c.)To promote and encourage the spread of the gospel of our Lord Jesus Christ.
- (d.)To encourage hard work and academic excellence amongst members (1.Thess.4:11)

### **ARTICLE III**

The following activities shall be undertaken by N.F.C.P.S.

#### **(a) EVANGELISM**

Organizing and/or participating in evangelistic programs such as personal evangelism, village outreaches, hospital evangelism, and visit to orphanage.

#### **(b) FELLOWSHIP MEETINGS**

Each chapter shall organize meetings fortnightly. Each of the meetings should last for at most two hours. These shall include talks/sermons, Bible expositions, picnics, seminars, drama, charitable visit and the like, aimed at bringing members to the fullness of Christ both as Christians and as Pharmacy students. Weekly meetings shall be at centers/chapters where feasible.

#### **(c) ZONING**

Zones are henceforth used to foster regional cooperation amongst Chapters e.g organizing Zonal programs such as zonal conferences, zonal outreaches amongst others.

##### **ZONE A**

Olabisi Onabanjo University(OOU) and University of Lagos(UNILAG), Obafemi Awolowo University (OAU), and University of Ibadan (UI), University of Ilorin (UNIILORIN).

##### **ZONE B**

Ahmadu Bello University (ABU), University of Jos (UNIJOS), University of Maiduguri(UNIMAID), Kaduna State University (KADSU), University of Gombe, and Usman Danfodio University, Sokoto (UDUS).

##### **ZONE C**

University of Nigeria, Nsukka (UNN), Nnamdi Azikiwe University (NAU), Delta State University (DELSU), and Igbinedion University, Okada

##### **ZONE D**

Niger Delta University (NDU), University of Benin (UNIBEN), University of Port-Harcourt (UNIPORT) and University of Uyo(UNIUYO).

#### **(d.) NATIONAL CONVENTION**

There shall be a national convention every year at the school that hosts the National Secretariat of the fellowship.

This shall rotate among chapters according to alphabetical order of the acronym of the universities. Thus the rotation order shall be;

ABU,Zaria; DELSU, Abraka; Igbinedion; KADSU; NAU; NDU; OAU; OOU;UDUS; UI; UNIBEN; UNIGOMBE, UNIILORIN,UNIJOS, UNILAG,UNIMAID, UNIPORT, UNIUYO.

If a Chapter, scheduled to host the next National Convention, by reasons beyond this order, is however neither ready nor willing to do so, such chapter will forfeit that opportunity. Such an opportunity shall be passed to the next chapter in line and the order shall continue. And by due rectification of such reasons except for cases of unwillingness, such chapter irrespective of the chapter next in line becomes the next hosting chapter.

The absence of the Chapter, scheduled to host the next National Convention in the current National convention, may preclude that chapter from hosting the next National Convention. However, a delegation or representative of that Chapter at the National Convention is sufficient to indicate her willingness and readiness to host the next National Convention.

New schools shall fit into the cycle according to the alphabetical order of their acronyms and if they are able and willing, they shall be allowed to host the national convention when it is their turn to do so. However, if a new chapter is neither willing nor ready to host the national convention, such a Chapter shall wait until it is her turn again.

#### **(e.) PUBLICATIONS**

Publications of magazines, articles, bimonthly newsletter “The Tablet” and annual journal, “*NFCPS MIRROR*”.

#### **(f.) FAMILY MEETINGS**

Family meetings shall be during the annual National Convention. It shall be business meeting of the fellowship. Decisions taken at this meeting shall take precedence over all other decisions.

#### **(g.) ACADEMIC DISCUSSION GROUPS**

Organizing academic discussion groups in each class in every chapter.

(h.) Any other activity relevant to the promotion of the aims and objectives of NFCPS.

## **ARTICLE IV**

### **NATIONAL PATRONS AND MATRONS**

The fellowship shall have a maximum of eight (8) patrons and matrons at least one from each zone. The role of the patron/matron is basically advisory and supportive.

### **NATIONAL ADVISERS**

One male and one female national advisers shall be appointed from the chapter that hosts the National secretariat.

National advisers should be easily accessible preferably Pharmacy Lecturers.

National Advisers shall cease to serve in this capacity once the National secretariat moves to another Chapter.

## **ARTICLE V**

### **OFFICERS**

#### **SECTION 1**

#### **NATIONAL EXECUTIVE COUNCIL (NEC)**

1. The N.E.C shall comprise all the members of the national Exco Committee and the Various Chapter presidents to be headed by the National president.
2. The functions of the NEC shall include:
  - (a) Determining the chapter that should be the National Secretariat, in accordance with the provisions of Article III (d) i.e.zoning, of this constitution.
  - (b) Shall meet to deliberate on all issues as it affects the fellowship.
  - (c) Shall meet at least twice during their tenure of office.
  - (d) Decisions of the NEC shall take precedence over all decisions at the chapter levels.
  - (e) Shall nominate patrons/matrons and advisers.
  - (f) Communicate with the National president of the Christian Pharmacist Fellowship of Nigeria.
  - (g) The NEC quorum shall be one-third of the total chapters and at least a representative of at least one chapter from each zone.

## SECTION II

### THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (NATIONAL EXECUTIVES)

(A) The chapter that hosts the National secretariat of the fellowship shall be responsible to produce all the national executive committee members except for the national Vice-presidents who shall come from each chapter of the Fellowship and must have served or serving as an executive before time.

All officers must be active members of the hosting chapter and must have served or serving in an office before time.

Officers should come from 200 level and above based on holistic competence.

(B) Functions of the Executive Committee shall include;

- (a) Shall be charged with the responsibility of organizing the National convention.
- (b) Shall enter into agreement or contact, or do other things that may be necessary for the smooth running of the affairs of NFCPS.
- (c) Shall prepare an annual budget.
- (d) Shall meet at least five times in a semester.
- (e) Shall have emergency meetings as need arises.
- (f) Shall set up committee for specific functions when necessary.
- (g) Promote interaction amongst chapters.

(C) The National officers shall include;

1. National President.
2. National General Secretary.
3. National Vice presidents.
4. National Assistant General Secretary.
5. National Prayer Secretary.
6. National Music Director.
7. National Evangelism Secretary
8. National financial Secretary.
9. National Treasurer.
10. National Welfare Secretary.
11. National Editor-in-Chief.
12. National Public Relations Officer.
13. National ICT/Media Coordinator.

## ARTICLE VI

### FUNCTIONS OF THE NATIONAL EXECUTIVES

#### 1. NATIONAL PRESIDENT

(a) He shall be the chairman of the National Executive Council and shall prayerfully lead the fellowship by coordinating the activities of the chapters in consultation with the executive

Officers.

- (b) Shall be the general overseer of the fellowship.
- (c) Shall be the overall custodian of the fellowship property and shall be a signatory to the NFCPS bank account.
- (d) Shall convene executive and emergency meetings through the secretary.
- (e) Shall preside over the family meeting during the convention.
- (f) Shall perform other duties as appropriate.

## **2. NATIONAL GENERAL SECRETARY**

- (a) He/she shall take minutes of all Exco meetings of the fellowship and ensure that all the minutes are kept up to date in a regular manner.
- (b) Give notice of meetings called by the President or NEC or executive committee.

Shall prepare and send minutes of every National Executive Council (NEC) meetings to every chapter of the fellowship after each NEC meeting.

- (c) Be responsible for the stationary and correspondence of NFCPS.
- (d) In the absence of the President in the executive committee meetings at the secretariat, he/she shall Chair the meeting.
- (e) Present to the General assembly a comprehensive report of the fellowship's activities at the end of his or her tenure of office.
- (f) Shall perform any other duties as assigned by the national Exco.

## **3. NATIONAL VICE PRESIDENTS**

- (a) Shall include all chapter Presidents.
- (b) He/she shall assist the National President in each Chapter.
- (c) Shall perform other functions assigned to him/her by the resolutions of the executive meeting.

## **4. NATIONAL ASSISTANT SECRETARY GENERAL**

- (a) He/she assist the General Secretary in his/her functions and help him/her in his/her absence.
- (b) Carry out other functions that may be assigned to her by the president.

## **5. NATIONAL PRAYER SECRETARY**

- (a) He/she conduct prayer meetings and handle individual prayer point.
- (b) Shall see that the prayer-band in all the chapters are functioning and collect prayer request from all the chapters

## **6. NATIONAL MUSIC DIRECTOR**

- (a) He/She shall be in-charge of the Choral unit of the fellowship.
- (b) He/She shall be in-charge of organizing songs and coordinating the convention song.
- (c) He/She shall see that the Choral units in all Chapters are functioning effectively.

## **7. NATIONAL EVANGELISM SECRETARY**

- (a) He/she co-ordinate the evangelistic activities of the fellowship.
- (b) Shall see that evangelical activity in all the chapters is ongoing according to the Direction of the Holy Spirit.

## **8. NATIONAL FINANCIAL SECRETARY**

- (a) He/she shall present a comprehensive and coherent financial report at the end of his/her tenure of office at the convention venue.
- (b) Keep a financial report of all the fellowship transaction.
- (c) Co-ordinates the fund raising drives for the fellowship.
- (d) He/she shall be a signatory to the NFCPS bank account.

## **9. NATIONAL TREASURER**

- (a) He/She shall in-charge of keeping the funds of the fellowship.
- (b) He/She shall also be a signatory to the NFCPS bank account.
- (c) He/She shall carryout all financial obligation(s) as directed by the president.
- (d) He/She shall in collaboration with the Financial Secretary co-ordinates the fund raising activities for the fellowship.
- (e) He/She shall also present a comprehensive and coherent report at the end of his/her tenure.

## **10. NATIONAL WELFARE SECRETARY**

- (a) She shall be in-charge of the welfare of the fellowship.
- (b) She shall be in-charge of all the meals during the national convention.
- (c) She shall ensure that the welfare department of other chapters is functional.

#### **11. NATIONAL EDITOR-IN-CHIEF**

(a) He/she shall handle all the publications of the fellowship. These shall include bi-monthly Newsletter and the fellowship's annual journal viz "NFCPS MIRROR"

#### **12. NATIONAL PUBLIC RELATIONS OFFICER**

- (a) He/she shall actively publicize the activities of the fellowship.
- (b) Carryout other functions as appropriate.

#### **13. NATIONAL ICT/MEDIA COORDINATOR**

- (a) He/She shall be in-charge of the NFCPS website and other social media platform of the fellowship.
- (b) He/She shall be in-charge recording the videos and audio messages preached during the national convention.
- (c) He/She shall be in-charge of media activities of the fellowship.

**NB:** All officers shall submit reports and files at the National Convention.

**NB:** The hosting chapter choral groups and OGS constitute the national choir and OGS respectively.

### **ARTICLES VII**

#### **ELECTIONS**

##### **1. REQUIREMENTS**

- (a) Those to be nominated should be born again.
- (b) Only registered members of the fellowship shall be eligible to hold office.
- (c) A nominee should be ready to bear responsibilities as demanded by the offices.
- (d) A nominee should have no disability arising from any proven case of misconduct.
- (e) Should also satisfy the spiritual requirements as stated in 1tim 3:1-13

(f) An eligible member must not be in final year.

## 2. ELECTORAL PROCESS

- (a) Nominations shall be done by members of the fellowship.
- (b) Screening by Caretaker committee.
- (c) Voting should be done by care taker committee.
- (d) A simple majority of the caretaker committee shall carry the vote.

## III CARETAKER COMMITTEE

- (a) Shall include all the outgoing chapter executives of the host school who are not eligible for election.
- (b) One or two members from the graduating schools.
- (c) In case an outgoing executive member is nominated he/she shall be replaced by a member from the graduating class.

IV. Other rules for the conduct of the election shall be drawn out by the caretaker committee as led by the Holy Spirit and presented to the fellow as need be.

## V. PRESENTATIONS

1. The caretaker committee shall present the screened candidates to the local chapter for acceptance before voting is done by the caretaker committee.
2. Any complaints about the candidate should be submitted to the caretaker committee within the time specified by the caretaker committee.
3. Elected candidate shall be presented to the house during the Family meeting.

## ARTICLE VIII

### CHAPTER EXECUTIVES

The National Exco shall exist separate from the chapter exco the National Secretariat. However, any secretariat with low fellowship strength is free to make the chapter Exco the National Exco as led by the Holy Spirit. In the latter case, all the functions outlined for the National Office shall be performed along with the duties of the respective chapter offices.

### 1. OFFICES OF THE CHAPTER EXCO

- (i) President
- (ii) Vice President

- (iii) General Secretary
- (iv) Assistant General Secretary
- (v) Prayer secretary
- (vi) Music Director
- (vii) Evangelism coordinator
- (viii) Financial Secretary
- (ix) Treasurer
- (x) Welfare Secretary
- (xi) Editor-in-Chief
- (xii) Public Relations Officer.

## **2. FUNCTIONS OF THE CHAPTER EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE**

- (a) Shall be responsible for the day-to-day running of the chapter NFCPS.
- (b) Shall be responsible to the general assembly.
- (c) Shall nominate patrons and matrons.
- (d) Shall enter into agreement or contact to do any other thing that may be necessary for the smooth running of the affairs of the chapter NFCPS.
- (e) Shall discuss proposed amendments of the constitution.
- (f) Shall meet before every general meeting.
- (g) Shall have power to power to appoint an ad-hoc committee to investigate matters concerning a member or an executive member.
- (h) Shall see to the welfare of the brethren.

## **3. FUNCTIONS OF THE CHAPTER OFFICERS**

### **I. THE PRESIDENT**

- (a) He shall be the leader and the chief spokesman of the NFCPS.
- (b) Be the chairman of the chapter executive committee
- (c) Coordinate and supervise all the activities of the chapter NFCPS.

- (d) Be signatory to the fellowship's bank account.
- (e) Convene executive, General and emergency meetings through the secretary.
- (f) Preside over the meetings.

## **II. THE VICE PRESIDENT**

- (a) Shall assist the president in his or her duties.
- (b) Shall act for the president in his/her absence.
- (c) Shall co-ordinate the academic discussion groups of the various levels.
- (d) Shall perform other functions that may be assigned to him/her by the resolution of the executive.

## **III. GENERAL SECRETARY**

- (a) He/she shall summon meetings of the fellowship and of the executive at the request of the president.
- (b) Take minutes of all general meetings of the fellowship and ensure that these minutes are kept up to date in a regular manner.
- (c) Be responsible for the stationery and the correspondence of the chapter NFCPS.
- (d) Present to the General Assembly a comprehensive report of the fellowship's activities at the end of his/her tenure of office.

## **(IV) ASSISTANT SECRETARY GENERAL**

- (a) He/she shall take minutes of all executive meetings and other meetings in the general secretary.
- (b) Assist the General Secretary in his/her duties and act for him/her in his/her absence.
- (c) Perform other duties assigned to him by the executive committee.

## **(V) PRAYER SECRETARY**

- (a) He/she shall conduct prayer meetings and handle individual prayer points.
- (b) Shall send the chapters 'prayer requests to the National Prayer secretary as they arises.
- (c) Shall send prayer request to National secretary.

## **(VI) MUSIC DIRECTOR**

- (a) He/She shall be in-charge of the music department of the fellowship.
- (b) He/She shall be in-charge of any praise and worship concert for the fellowship.

## **(VII) EVANGELISM SECRETARY**

- (a) He/she shall co-ordinate all evangelistic activities of the fellowship.
- (b) Encourage the spread of the Gospel by members in their different levels or classes.
- (c) Prayerfully evolve other strategies that shall help NFCPS in her evangelistic vision.

#### **(VIII) FINANCIAL SECRETARY**

- (a) He/she shall keep a financial record of all the fellowship's transactions.
- (b) Present a comprehensive financial report at the end of his/her tenure.
- (c) Be a signatory to the fellowship's bank account.
- (d) Co-ordinate the fund-raising drive for the fellowship.

#### **(IX) TREASURER**

- (a) He/she shall be signatory to the fellowship's bank account.
- (b) Submit a comprehensive and coherent report at the end of his/her tenure.
- (c) Be responsible for the collection and keeping of revenue.

#### **(X) WELFARE SECRETARY**

- (a) She shall be in-charge of the welfare of the fellowship.
- (b) She shall be in-charge of all the meals during celebration activities of the fellowship.
- (c) She shall ensure that she assist the Vice President in knowing the academic welfare of the fellowship members.

#### **(XI) EDITOR-IN-CHIEF**

- (a) Shall be chairman of the editorial board.
- (b) Shall handle all publications of the chapter NFCPS.

#### **(XII) PUBLIC RELATIONS OFFICER**

- (a) He/she shall publicize the activities of the fellowship.
- (b) Carry out other functions as appropriate.

#### **FINANCE**

- (a) Each registered members shall pay an annual due, an amount determined by each chapter.
- (b) Members may donate in cash or kind as led by the Spirit of God.
- (c) The Exco shall call for donations and offerings when there is need for these.
- (d) Each chapter shall pay a tithe i.e. 10% of her revenue to the National Secretariat.
- (e) Each chapter shall pay a capitation fee at each National Convention. The amount shall be decided at the National Executive Council(NEC) meeting.
- (f) Capitation fees paid by Chapters shall not be spent at the current National Convention but shall be handed over to the next National Executive Committee at her inaugural National

Executive Council (NEC) Meeting.

### **UTILIZATION OF FUNDS**

1. Funding of activities, programs etc. shall be determined by the N.E.C/National Exco and chapter Exco as the case may be.
2. A separate revolving fund shall be maintained for the outgoing Executive and present report at the N.E.C. meeting.

### **MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE**

1. The members of the audit committee shall be non-executive members in the school hosting the National Secretariat.
2. There shall be a chairman and a secretary.
3. The audit committee shall have a total of five members.

### **DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE**

Disciplinary committee shall be set up in event of any act considered necessary to warrant disciplinary measures, such acts of indiscipline shall be considered as capable of jeopardizing, defaulting and defecting the fellowship's objectives and aims.

### **THE DISCIPLINARY COMMITTEE SHALL COMPRISE;**

1. The chapter executive when only member(s) of the fellowship is/are involved.
2. If the N.E.C as a whole or a member of the N.E.C. is subject to disciplinary actions, a disciplinary committee shall be set up comprising a patron/matron or the staff adviser and one member of the fellowship.

### **NAMES OF NATIONAL PATRONS**

1. Dr. Wilson Erhun -OAU
2. Prof. Okhamafe -UNIBEN
3. Prof E.C Ibezim -UNN
4. Dr. J. Kolawole -UNIJOS
5. Prof. A.A. Olaniyi -UI
6. Prof C. O. Esimone -NAU

### **NAME OF NATIONAL MATRONS**

1. Mrs. S.C. Okoli -Emzor Parma
2. Prof(mrs) C.I. Igwilo -Unilag
3. Dr.(Mrs) C.P. Babalola-U.I

4. Prof P. O Osadebe -UNN

The constitution was last reviewed and amended at the NEC meeting held at the University of Nigeria Nsukka on the 28<sup>th</sup> of May 2016.

---

**OZOTA REMIGIUS CHIJOKE**

(National President 2016)

---

**UGWU ONYEKACHI KIZITO**

(National General Secretary 2016)